
 

1 
 

Minutes 
Essex County Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
January 3, 2024 

7:00 P.M. 

A regular meeting of the Essex County Planning Commission was held on January 3, 2024, at the 
Essex County School Board Office, Tappahannock, Virginia. 

Present: 
David Jones – Chairman 
Angelo Stevens, Jr. – Vice Chairman 
Stephen Walters 
Wright Andrews 
 Scott Mundie 
  
Absent: 
Jean Segar 
Trent Taliaferro 
 
 
Also present: 
Kelly McKnight – Building & Zoning Office Manager 
Brian Barnes – Zoning Administrator 
   
CALL TO ORDER 

David Jones, Chairman, called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 7:00 
pm. 

ROLL CALL 

Chairman Jones asked Ms. McKnight to call the roll.  A quorum was met. 

MEETING AGENDA 

Chairman Jones asked if any changes needed to be made to the agenda. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Jones asked if there were any corrections or additions needed for the December 5, 
2023, minutes?  Mr. Mundie made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Mr. Walters 
seconded the motion. AYES: 5 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 2 

 

 



 

2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 None 

PUBLIC HEARING 

None  

OLD BUSINESS 

Discussion of chapter 1 of the Essex County Comprehensive Plan 

Chairman Jones asked if Mr. Barnes would like to say anything before getting started. 

Mr. Barnes said that Ernie, April, and he attended the Certified Zoning Administrator training in 
Charlottesville, VA for three days and he wanted to tell the Planning Commission about that. He 
said that Max Hlavin wo is our County Attorney, taught one of the classes and then another 
professor from UVA taught best management practices with counties whether its Board of 
Zoning Appeals, Planning Commissions, office politics. He said that he was half a motivational 
speaker and half management guru. Mr. Barnes said that on the first day a man who worked in 
Virginia Beach for 35 years in zoning taught a session.  He said it was very interesting and very 
worthwhile.  Sadly, you can’t take the exam until June. 

Mr. Barnes said he left them with section one of the Comp Plan, and he wanted to let the 
Planning Commission know that he is eager and willing to help with the Comp plan. Mr. Barnes 
said it is important to the people you serve on how the zoning ordinance works.  He said that 
Commissioner Andrews sent in comments.  Mr. Barnes wants to receive comments from the 
Commissioners, and he can put something together.  He said doing it bite by bite and focusing 
on one chapter at a time since each chapter is different and we can look at it the next month. 

Chairman Jones asked the question, do you think we would be good to do a couple of chapters 
and get them how we want them and put them to public hearing and get those out of the way, 
then send them to the Board of Supervisors to review? 

Mr. Barnes said that he agrees with looking at it a little at a time instead of all at one time.  
Some things can get missed if done all at one time. 

Chairman Jones said that this would be good for the public as well.   

Commissioner Andrews agreed and said that we should get the public’s opinion as we go along.  
He also said that there is a lot of data in there and that needs to get updated before it goes 
before going in front of the public.  It is essential to have the public involved and we need to 
make it as easy and interesting as possible. He said that most people don’t have knowledge of 
what the plan is. 

Chairman Jones said that he knows we advertise it in the paper.  He thinks we should add a 
little blurb about what is being discussed even if it is only three sentences.   Make it interesting 



 

3 
 

so the public will be interested in coming to the meetings.  He also said that the Comprehensive 
Plan is on the website.  

Commissioner Andrews said that he thought in the past they had a steering committee or a 
citizens committee that worked to put the original one or updates together. Are we going to 
have a parallel system where we have some community people reading it and giving us ideas as 
we go along or are we going to throw them back to them with what we did? 

Chairman Jones said that is his point of having an article in the paper that says we are 
discussing it so some interested citizens will come. 

Commissioner Andrews said that as complex as the plan is as for as most ordinary citizens it is 
going to be hard to put their arms around it.  If we could involve the citizens  in some sort of 
work session. 

Chairman Jones said that maybe what we could do is for Brian to bring it up to April.  This 
meeting is just that that they can listen to what our thoughts are.  The Comprehensive Plan is 
on the website, and they can come to the meeting and listen to what we have to say.  Maybe 
before we do the public hearing for Chapter 1 and 2, we could have a listening session. If we 
find out there are twenty people, we can do it every time.  If only one or two show up, then we 
can say that we have given it every effort. 

Vice Chairman Stevens said that most people don’t get involved until it affects them. 

Chairman Jones said that he and Brian were talking today, and he read over the state statue 
today and it is to be general in nature and it is to be broad, so we don’t take the board of 
supervisors and hem them in a corner.  It is better for the public because we get into the 
minute detail people get lost in the shuffle.   

Chairman Jones suggested they do Chapters 1 and 2 and put it out there for the publics input 
session, not a public hearing but hear what they have to say. 

Commissioner Walters said that Richmond County just went through their Comp plan, and they 
used the Berkley group.  He said that they had a committee of local people knowledgeable in 
different areas to hash out ideas.  It would be good to talk to people over at Richmond County 
to see how they handled it because they went through public input sessions. How did that 
work? Was it effective? Did it cover everybody? There are certain people that are interested in 
this.  There are a lot of people that also are not interested in this but have passionate feelings 
about things. 

Chairman Jones said when it came time for the capital improvement budget, we always had 
people in here looking for their special interest.  Chairman Jones is all for public input, the more 
the better, but you have you be careful about who we are going to ask to participate. If we 
picked the head of Chamber of Commerce or head of EDA.  You will leave someone out.  This is 



 

4 
 

a public forum so at the least email Brian or Kelly and say that you want a copy of the minutes 
for the comprehensive plan. 

Commissioner Mundie asked if Richmond County’s new Comp Plan is on the website? 

Commissioner Walters said yes. 

Mr. Barnes said that he is going to reach out to Hope. 

Commissioner Andrews said that we need to look at several other counties for comparison and 
see what ideas they have.  If we can look at one or two and see how they approach it.  He said 
that he has never done a Comprehensive Plan and would like to see what a good one looks like. 

Commissioner Mundie said that he remembers when Cheryl Evans gave background on how the 
Comprehensive Plan works.  She said that you start with your Comp Plan because that is your 
30000-foot view and that lays out your broader less specific framework and then you get down 
in the weeds with the actual zoning.  It makes since to do the comp plan first and then the 
zoning ordinance. We were under pressure to get the zoning ordinance revised.  We were doing 
it in the reverse order.  It is important to remember the comp plan is the the umbrella, and the 
zoning ordinance is the framework. 

Chairman Jones said that he reread the law today and it is more specific that you have here.  
There was one point in there that said the comprehensive plan says that this is an area for this 
and if someone wants to put it here you shall not use this against this person that wants to do 
this, and people do that all the time.  They say the comprehensive plan says it should be here 
and in no way shall you use the fact that it is not in that area to not look at it and accept it.  I 
find that very odd. 

Vice Chairman Stevens said that we have to decide which direction do we want the county to 
go.  Do we want it to grow or stay stagnant or make the whole county a ghost town? The 
growth process is not here.  The youth have left.  More retirees are moving into the Northern 
district.  We need to sit back and figure out what is leaving next and how or do we want more 
industry to produce more jobs. 

Chairman Jones said to maintain the rural and beauty of the county.  With the intent that we 
want to keep it rural, farmland and nice, this is how we do it.  We first decide how we want the 
county to go. Then we decide how it will go.  We say we want the county to head in this 
direction. These are the things that we want in Essex County. 

Mr. Barnes said that everything the Commissioners are talking about is what we are working 
on, and he is going to keep everything in a folder.  

Commissioner Andrews said that we need to consider the regional nature and why we are 
unique.  There are many common issues that are out there.  The solar farms, the data farms. 
We need general cooperation. 



 

5 
 

Chairman Jones said that we have to decide if we want a data center it would bring in jobs. He 
is not saying he is for a data center, it’s just an example.   

Commissioner Walters said yes if you do it right what is the cost to the County? 

Mr. Barnes said that if you came to this county and said I am going to build a 1000 home 
subdivision and bring in a lot of people in Essex County.  Not bring in anything else except 
people.  Whether you are pro development or antidevelopment.  Most people might not be 
crazy about that.  But if you bring in a proposal that brings in a bunch of jobs, maybe 250 
people.  Who is going to be against that?  Most people are in favor of improving their quality of 
life or income.  Mr. Barnes said as the staff guy is trying to stick to the noncontroversial stuff.  

Chairman Jones said look what’s happening in Kilmarnock with Hills Quarter which was a 
thriving subdivision in the 90’s and had was a golf course now the golf course is gone.  Property 
values went down by 30 percent.   

Brian Barnes said that a lot of your housing starts now in Hobbs Hole. 

Chairman Jones said that it is an infill of an existing product not new growth.  

Mr. Barnes said that your job is hard because you have to help tell the Board and the citizens 
and plan out what you think success is in Essex County and how to get there and that is not 
easy. 

Mr. Barnes said that some of the goals of the county can be met by the town and vice versa but 
the two entities with their comprehensive plan are not working hand and glove.  They are 
starting their comp plan update as well. 

Mr. Barnes passed out a paper called Study Goals 360 corridor study that VDOT is starting right 
now. Smart scale with VDOT.  Changed VDOT from road projects to a data driven analytical to 
look at road improvements.  You now have to get it into this smart scale project queue then it is 
studied, funded and then it’s built. The Commonwealth transportation board still looks at the 
projects.  For the first time ever Essex County is now participating in this. 



 

6 
 

 

Mr. Barnes said that what you do with this Comprehensive Plan is very important.  Mr. Barnes 
said that next week he is supposed to give a presentation to the Board.  Chris Rose is good at 
picking up new stuff to write about. So, when he says that we are in the update phase that will 
help. The future of federal money and state money being spent. They are looking at the 
comprehensive plan to see if we are serious about it.  Brays Fork intersection area is on the 
smart scale now, Howerton’s 17 and Howerton’s intersection on smart scale. 

Chairman Jones asked you mean to improve it is what you are saying? 

Mr. Barnes said yes this is pre scope, they are just studying it and they will come back with 
ideas. 

Commissioner Stevens said that he noticed many signs are coming up now. They have many 
accidents in Champlain.  

Mr. Barnes said he wants the Planning Commission to think about this and it is ok if something 
is in prescope now.  This is a 24-month thing and hopefully in less than 24 months he and Tim 
Smith loading up 4 or 5 more projects for the county to go in the prescope.  Hopefully you will 
see roads getting fixed. 

Chairman Jones said that if he heard Mr. Barnes correctly, we would in the comp plan saying 
that we would make a general statement in the comp plan that we recognize there are several 
areas of roads in Essex County that need attention because of traffic issues like …. 

Mr. Barnes said that with the comp plan you always want it to be measurable, data driven and 
not an opinion, but something based on fact because of accident data. 



 

7 
 

Chairman Jones said that the state statue gives you what you need in your road plan. 

Mr. Barnes handed out a handout on the Code of Virginia and the capital improvement plan. 

Chairman Jones said they do have one, but it hasn’t been updated in a couple of years. 

 

Mr. Barnes said that within another county that he worked for every year starting with January 
we would look at every school bus, cop car and everything else and we would have a five-year 
replacement plan for everything, the Planning Commission would.  Do you all do that now? 

Chairman Jones said we did until a couple to three years ago. When he first got on, we did not.  
Then he was coming from Lancaster he said they did do that.  They invited all the county 
department heads in, and they said what is needed. The Planning Commission would listen to 
their wants and needs. COVID is what stopped it. 



 

8 
 

Mr. Barnes said that he knows it is in the Comp Plan. If it is not true anymore, we need to 
change it.  He will have the answer to that next month. 

Commission Andrews made his comments on section one which is included below. 



 

9 
 

 



 

10 
 

 



 

11 
 

 



 

12 
 

 



 

13 
 

 



 

14 
 

 



 

15 
 

 



 

16 
 

 



 

17 
 

 

 

Chairman Jones said that he made some notes also.  He said do you want to send an email to 
Mr. Barnes with his notes for Chapter 1. 



 

18 
 

Mr. Barnes said that he before the next meeting will start typing up a draft of section 1 for the 
Planning Commission.  If there is something you want in it or that needs to be edited send that 
to Mr. Barnes.  Mr. Barnes said that he might assign each Planning Commission a color if they 
have a new text to add and each Planning Commissioner will know who made the edit. 

Chairman Jones said that if Angelo is not much of an email person, can he come in the office 
with his notes written down? 

Mr. Barnes said yes. Mr. Barnes said that he is looking forward to their comments. Mr. Barnes 
said that Carlos, who works in IT, is a creative person and map maker.  They already have an 
update to maps or new things.  He has come up with a cool graphic of Essex County and the 
distance that you have to drive to a big population center.  Mr. Barnes said that he is not anti-
consultant but is anti-cost. 

 Chairman Jones said we need to update the numbers and data before we get started on it.  

Mr. Barnes said that he will leave the old existing number in it and just put a strike through the 
old number with the new data. 

Chairman Jones said that the other thing that hasn’t been thought about.  Tappahannock is 
locked in. 

Mr. Barnes said that you have a river on one side and creeks all around us. 

Chairman Jones said for them to grow, where can we put another store? 

Chairman Jones said that a call from Mr. Barnes would be helpful for him to call the Town 
Manager because they are doing their comp plan the same time we are and find out where 
they are. Commissioner Andrews said that he recommends that Mr. Barnes talks to the County 
EDA where his wife chairs. 

Mr. Barnes said that he will reach out to the Town Manager. 

Commissioner Walters asked if they could send any random ideas? 

Mr. Barnes said yes. 

                                         

 

 

 

  

NEW BUSINESS 

None 



 

19 
 

 

ADJOURN 

Having no further discussion, a motion to adjourn was made and seconded. AYES: 5, NAYES: 0, 
ABSENT:2 

 

 

_____________________________ 

David Jones, Chairman 

   

 


